





Contents

2024 MASTER PLAN

INTRODUCTION	
JC Lowe Oval Reserve	2
Yarrawonga District	4
History of JC Lowe Oval Reserve	5
Demographics	6
Master Plan Objectives	7
Related Council Plan and Strategies	8
Related State / National Sport Strategies	11
Stakeholder Identification	12
CURRENT SITUATION	
Site User Groups Usage	13
Community Asset Committee	14
ISSUE AND OPPORTUNITY ANALYSIS	
Issues	16
Opportunities	19
EXISTING OPPORTUNITY ANYALYSIS	
Existing Infrastructure at JC Lowe Oval Reserve	22
DEVELOPMENT PRIORITIES	28

30

Introduction

JC Lowe Oval Reserve

The Yarrawonga JC Lowe Oval Reserve is located off Burley Road on the western edge of Yarrawonga. The reserve has also historically been known as Alexandra Park.



The core users of the reserve are the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club, Yarrawonga Junior Football Club and the Yarrawonga Lawn Tennis Club. The clubs offer a wide variety of competitions, events and programs catering for juniors through to seniors.

The main assets on site include:

- 2 x netball courts and warm up space
- Home and away female change facilities
- Football oval
- Football clubrooms and home and away change facilities
- Scoreboard facility
- 23 x grass tennis courts
- 4 x asphalt tennis courts
- Tennis clubrooms
- Car Park (South Tennis Courts)
- Car Park (West of Yarrawonga Outdoor Swimming Pool)

The quality and condition of the playing surfaces is revered throughout Australia as being of the highest quality, allowing for elite level sporting use. This attracts car enthusiasts, runners and tennis players from all over the country to the precinct.

This sporting hub currently hosts many annual events including:

- Yarrawonga Easter Tennis Tournament
- Tennis Australia Festival of Tennis (November each year)
- Community Concerts
- Annual Rod Run (November each year) (REMPLAN \$2,651,000 expenditure in the region) (14,000 visits)
- Cancer Council Relay for Life
- Yarrawonga Schools Athletics Carnivals (4 events each year)
- Murray Bushrangers practice match series and training camp
- Murray Marathon
- VCTA Country Week Tennis Event (held on rotation)
- Yarrawonga Football Netball Club (Ovens and Murray) games and training
- Yarrawonga Junior Football Club (AWJFL) (Ages 6 -12) games and training
- Yarrawonga Junior Football Club (Ages 6 -12) Friday night games



Oval



Netball Courts



Tennis Courts



Dempsey Pavilion

While the JC Lowe Oval Reserve facilities are a hub for people to participate, socialise and engage over the winter months, the JC Lowe Oval Reserve precinct provides more than a regular town sporting oval.

Country Week, the Easter Tournament, the Rod Run and the Murray Bushrangers continue to return to Yarrawonga due to the significant efforts to maintain the elite playing surfaces at the reserve.

Each of these major events boosts the local economy and benefits the broader region with event goers staying in towns across the shire.

Yarrawonga and District

Yarrawonga is located approximately 275km from Melbourne, 80km from Shepparton and 90km from Wodonga, the nearest regional hubs.

Yarrawonga has a number of significant community assets that benefit the town including the Yarrawonga Town Hall, Yarrawonga Showgrounds Victoria Park, Chinamans Island Nature Reserve, Yarrawonga Foreshore and Lake Mulwala, Kennedy Park, JC Lowe Oval Reserve and the Yarrawonga Outdoor Swimming Pool.

Yarrawonga is acknowledged as;

- Having a unique identity derived from its location on Lake Mulwala, its growing, vigorous community and its continuing strengths as a commercial / retail centre.
- A tourist destination.
- An area of natural conservation.
- Providing a sought after lifestyle for families and retirees.



Yarrawonga - Mulwala

History of the JC Lowe Oval Reserve

In the late 1980's, the Yarrawonga Shire renamed the Grove Oval as the JC Lowe Oval to honor the Lowe family's contribution to football in Yarrawonga.

As an 18 year old, John Charles Lowe was employed to cart metal from Glenrowan to Benalla for the main street. As a result he became the first person taken hostage by the Kelly gang during the Glenrowan siege. When he died 70 years later he is believed to have been the last person alive to have witnessed the events at Glenrowan.

In 1918 he built the first hospital in Yarrawonga for his two older daughters who were nurses and ran it primarily as a small maternity hospital for only a few years in the early 1920's.

John also became very active in the community. He instigated the formation of the first football club, in which he played, and later umpired. He was also the driving force behind the selection and clearing of land for a football ground, which eventually was named in his honor (and remains the JC Lowe Oval to this day).

The Moira Shire Council officially adopted the Instrument of Delegation during its Committee of Council Meeting on 7 April 1997 for the JC Lowe Oval Management Committee.



John Charles Lowe (centre front) with his wife and children



Aerial photo taken in the 1940's



Saturday morning tennis at the "Grove" 1960's

Demographics

Yarrawonga is the largest town in the Moira Shire, with a population of over 8,660 (ABS, 2022). Yarrawonga's population is expected to grow to 11,619 by 2041. The town is located on the southern bank of Lake Mulwala on the Murray River and has strong links with southern New South Wales, particularly the Mulwala Township.

The cross-border relationship with Mulwala is important as it is a significant township with a population of over 2,500 (2022 figures) residents who also utilise Yarrawonga's Recreational services.

Based on the 2021 Census data, Yarrawonga's population is breakdown is:

- 48.5% Male
- 51.50% Female
- The median age for Yarrawonga is 52
- There are 2409 families in Yarrawonga
- 15% (1350) are aged 14 years and under
- 8% (747) between 15 24
- 28% (2479) between 25 and 54 years
- 47% (4095) 55 years and over

16% of the community have done voluntary work through an organization or group in the last 12 months, which is very similar to the Australia wide data of around 14%.

The major employment industries in Moira Shire are Health Care & Social Assistance 22.4%, Retail Trade 16.3%, Construction 13.3%, Accommodation & Food Services 10.7% and Education & Training 9.7%.

The ABS also publishes Socio-Economic Index for Areas (SEIFA) data that ranks areas according to relative socio-economic advantage and disadvantage. In 2021 Yarrawonga had a SEIFA index of 974 ranking it in the 3rd Decile (lowest 30% of socioeconomic advantage in the state).

What is a Master Plan?

A master plan determines a broad vision for an area and outlines a number of projects and strategies that are required to be implemented to achieve the new vision. Further investigation and feasibility of some of the projects and initiatives recommended in the JC Lowe Reserve Master Plan may be required depending upon their scale, likely impact and estimated cost. It is important to note that the inclusion and reference to projects in the master plan does not directly commit Moira Shire Council, the reserve user groups, the Victorian Government or any other organisation to a responsibility for funding and implementing these projects.

Master Plan Objectives

The JC Lowe Reserve Master Plan aims to:

- Identify and prioritise infrastructure related development needs in order to ensure the reserve remains fit for purpose and a sustainable community asset.
- Embed a strategic direction and "vision" for the future of the Reserve that is shared between the Reserve Committee, user groups and Council.
- Provide a facility that caters for community sport at a local and regional level and strategically aligns with the Active Victoria Strategy 2022-2026.
- Host major tourist events for the region.
- Key principles considered in developing the plan include clear preference for multi-use facilities and consideration of service provision available in surrounding towns.
- Provide a plan for Council to develop and maintain recreational assets.
- Set out a cost plan for the implementation of the Master Plan.

It includes:

- An analysis of the current and future types and levels of usage at the recreation reserve; and
- A detailed site plan showing short, medium and long-term outcomes.



Related Council Plan and Strategies

Council has a number of strategies, plans and policies that relate to the development of Council's recreational assets and increasing the health and wellbeing of our community.

While Council has articulated in a number of strategies, plans and policies its commitment to encouraging participation in sport and recreation, it is however challenged by a unique set of circumstances linked to the municipalities make-up and population distribution. In this context the demand for infrastructure development and limited funds provide a significant and on-going challenge.

Moira Shire Community Asset Committee Manual 2020

The direction and powers of the Committee are provided for via Council's delegation (through a Community Asset Committee), as well as the Moira Shire Community Asset Committee Manual 2020 (the manual).

In addition to providing guidance relating to governance and process, the manual also states that Council will support the Committee in the development of a Facility Improvement Plan, to outline the Committees aspirations for the use and development of the facility over its term in office. It states that Committees should constantly seek to identify and review potential improvements to the facility.

Moira Shire Council Plan 2021-2025

The Moira Shire Council Plan is the document that guides the Council's direction and activities to 2025.

The Plan aims to ensure that recreation, sport, art and cultural facilities and programs will respond to cultural diversity and community needs. It will achieve this objective by implementing actions from the Recreation Strategy to support active lifestyles through passive and organized sport and recreational services and infrastructure.

The first strategic pillar 'A welcoming and inclusive place', includes the strategic action 'Recreation, sports facilities, programs and services respond to our diverse and emerging community needs'.

Moira Shire - Wellbeing for All Ages Strategy 2021-2025

The Moira Shire Wellbeing for All Ages Strategy aims to provide Council with a clear and strategic planning approach that integrates planning for health and wellbeing across all stages of life. Amongst a range of observations, the goal states that: "Moira Shire is a place where people feel safe, included and thrive as valued members of the community". The objective to this goal is "Encourage the participation of women and girls in sport and recreation" and "to ensure new infrastructure and community assets are accessible".

Moira Shire Council - Financial Plan

Moira Shire Council is responsible for an extensive range of infrastructure assets across the municipality worth a total value of \$775 million. Council is continually faced with the ongoing dilemma of what resources and funds need to be provided to ensure these assets continue to provide the required services to its community in the most cost effective manner for the present and the future. This is challenging within a rate capping environment and other financial pressures including inflation and population growth. Council is committed to prioritising the funding of asset renewals which limits the amount of discretionary funding available for new works or capital upgrades.

Moira Shire Council Recreation Strategy 2016-2026

The Moira Shire Council Recreation Strategy provides a framework to support the delivery of its vision of Moira being a Shire "...where its people are happy, healthy and safe through provision of quality and accessible recreation opportunities that meet the needs of community now and into the future" The Strategy defines Yarrawonga JC Lowe Oval Reserve as a 'District Sports Ground' and states that in the case of Moira Shire and especially in the smaller towns, these facilities are often the heart of communities, providing a range of sporting, recreational and social opportunities. In defining a level of service that provides reasonable access and facilitates participation but is financially sustainable the strategy proposes that 90% of the population live within 20kms of the town centre of a town with a District sports ground. In addition to recognizing the important role of sport, the strategy also acknowledges the importance of providing spaces and programs for less formal active recreation through the ongoing development of walking tracks and cycling paths, active green spaces including outdoor fitness equipment and programs to activate these spaces. The Strategy also highlights the unique challenges faced by the Council in providing sustainable facilities and states that "the provision of recreational program delivery and asset management can be resource intense and it is necessary to take a smart and efficient approach to the future....this will involve working in partnerships, shared use facilities, rationalisation when needed and a strong working relationship with Committees, user groups and the wider community".

Moira Shire Asset Management Plan 2021 - 2031

Moira Shire is responsible for a portfolio of assets that have a combined value and replacement cost of \$800 million, including land, buildings, drainage, waste and roads.

This framework aims to ensure that Council's assets are sustainable and continue to function at a level of service determined by the Council and accepted by the broader community.

The purpose of the asset management plan is to "show how we will responsibly manage our assets to meet the service delivery needs of our community into the future in a cost effective way".

Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2022 -2026

As per the Moira Shire Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2012-2026 Council must ensure that Environmental sustainability is considered and integrated across all areas of Council, in all decisions and in project implementation and that Ecologically Sustainable Design Principles are implemented in the planning stage of all Council projects (capital works, subdivisions, new buildings and building renovations). These are captured in the environmentally accountable Council focus area of the strategy.

All Abilities Access and Inclusion Plan 2023 - 2026

The All Abilities Access and Inclusion Plan incorporates Accessible Places and Spaces. An action of the draft strategy is to develop and plan for a connected and accessible community environment which incorporates improved pedestrian and cycling infrastructure, improved accessible car parking at key community buildings and in shopping precincts to ensure safe access and sufficient spaces, provide sufficient Council owned public toilets through and improve public parks, playgrounds, gardens and facilities to ensure that they are connected, accessible and inviting to all.

Moira Shire Play Space Strategy 2023

The Moira Shire Council Play Strategy was adopted by council in March 2023. Access to quality play spaces for the Moira Shire community will support the realisation of the Community Vision. The Moira Shire Play Strategy underpins Council's current and future investment in play spaces across the Shire, and identifies opportunities for renewals, upgrades, and new playgrounds across the Shire including within Recreational Reserves.

Related State / National Sport Strategies

Netball Victoria 2023-2026 Strategic Plan

Netball Victoria identifies four strategic pillars in their Strategic Plan including Play, Grow, Inspire and Lead as well as the development of a Statewide Facilities Strategy to assist with any redevelopment plans for existing netball venues, or construction plans for a replacement of a new netball venue and auditing the condition and design of facilities against netball facility standards.

Tennis Australia 2020

Tennis Australia has developed a comprehensive planning framework to support and assist tennis clubs throughout the country. Amongst the frameworks are recommended levels of facilities based on a national hierarchy and indicative costings of upgrades and re-development of courts based on a number of court and surface types. Under the Tennis Australia facility hierarchy Yarrawonga Lawn Tennis Club would fall under Regional Tennis Centres.

Australian Football League - Preferred Community Facility Guidelines 2024

The Guidelines have been developed in order to provide direction for the development of new facilities and/or those being considered for major refurbishment or redevelopment.

For local or regional type facilities the guidelines recommend:

- Avoiding open showers and provide 3 to 4 showers.
- Avoid troughs and individual urinals and provide a minimum of 1 ambulant accessible toilet cubicle.
- Social/Community spaces should be at least 100m² and around 150m².
- Appropriate umpires, meeting, administration and storage spaces should be provided.

Specifically relating to change facilities the guidelines recommends that:

- A minimum of 3 showers should be provided and that these should be lockable cubicles to better accommodate all users.
- A minimum of 3 toilet pans is preferred and should be provided as lockable cubicles. Urinals should be avoided to better accommodate all gender use and at least one ambulant toilet should be provided in accordance with Disability Discrimination Act standards.
- A regional or club level social facility should have a commercial kitchen and storage of around 25m² and a social, community or multi-purpose room of around 150m².

Stakeholder Identification

The table below identifies the primary and secondary stakeholders in relation to the on-going management and future development of the recreation reserve i.e. primary stakeholders are those that are critical and the secondary stakeholders i.e. those who are influential in the direction but not necessarily critical.

Primary Community Asset Committee Yarrawonga Football Netball Club Yarrawonga Lawn Tennis Club Moira Shire Council

Roles Council Liaison and Reserve Maintenance Primary User Primary User Asset Manager

Yarrawonga Holiday Park Committee Secondary Yarrawonga Mulwala Amateur Canoe Club Education Department

- Yarrawonga Godfathers Organisation
- State Government
- Local Business
- Department of Energy, Environment and Climate Action (DEECA)
- Federal Government
- Sport & Recreation Victoria
- Other casual users
- State Sporting Associations
- Yarrawonga/Mulwala Business and Tourism

Interest

Adjoining Land Lease

Yarrawonga Holiday Park User Group

User Group

Secondary User

Potential Funding Partner

Potential Funding Partner

Land Owner

Potential Funding Partner

Potential Funding Partner

Secondary Users

Oversee User Groups

Event Organisers

Current Situation

Site User Groups Usage



Friday night Football Sunday AWJFL

Club Competitions

Yarrawonga

Lawn Tennis

Club

- Goulburn Murray Tennis
- Junior Tennis and Squad Training

Club Competitions

Club Tournaments

- Friday Night Aggregate
- Thursday Night Ladies
- Tuesday Night Mens
- Social Tennis
- On Court Sessions

Club Tournaments

- Major Competitions
 - Easter Tournament approx. 1500 participants/spectators
 - Country Week Tennis approx. 1000 participants/spectators

Friday Night Football

- 300 children and their parents/supporters
- 100 approx. 5,6 & 8 year old boys and girls learning to play via Auskick
- U8s 4 teams of playing each Friday night
- U10s 6 teams playing each Friday night
- U12s 4 teams playing each Friday night

Sunday AWJFL

- Female Football
- 3 Under-age junior football teams

Yarrawonga Football Netball Club

Saturday Ovens and Murray

- 120 participants with 100 volunteers and spectators in the 1000s
- 1 U18 Team
- 2 Open Age Football teams under
- 2 Under Age netball teams
- 3 Open age netball teams



Yarrawonga Football Netball Club

Other Uses

- Education Use
- Athletic Carnivals
- Annual Rod Run
- Relay for Life



Annual Rod Run

Community Asset Committee

The Yarrawonga JC Lowe Oval Reserve is located on Crown land and managed by Moira Shire Council, who in turn under the provision of Section 65 of the Local Government Act 2020 have appointed a volunteer "Community Asset Committee" (C.A.C.) to oversee its day to day operations as well as support any future developments.

Moira Shire CA.C.'s have some flexibility relating to their composition, however the Moira Shire Council Community Asset Committee Operations Manual 2020 recommends a mix of user group and/or community representatives, limiting any single user group to two representatives. The committee's current governance structure includes a president, vice president, secretary, treasurer and five general committee members.

The current structure of the JC Lowe C.A.C. is a Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson, dual Secretary / Treasurer Position and single member representation from the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club, Yarrawonga Lawn Tennis Club, Yarrawonga Caravan Park Committee, Yarrawonga Godfathers Organisation and four Community Representatives.

JC Lowe Oval Reserve Community Asset Committee Vision and Objectives

Through the review of current operations, issues, opportunities and trends the reserve committee has developed the following Vision and Objectives for the next 10 years:

Vision

As a regionally significant sporting precinct the Yarrawonga JC Lowe Oval Reserve will continue to be the sporting heart of the Yarrawonga community by bringing people together and keeping them connected through the provision of sporting, recreational and social facilities.

Objectives

Financial

- Raise enough funds to ensure the facilities are safe and functional until appropriate development occurs.
- Work with partners to raise funds to support future developments.

Objectives

Compliance

• To ensure Community Asset Committees obligations are being met.

Programming and Use

- Provide 'Regional Sporting Facility standard spaces' for Tennis and a District level facility for football and netball as well as having provision to support additional activity as needed in the future.
- Encourage diversity and growth in usage through provision of appropriate facilities.
- Provide an accessible and compliant function and change room space to meet the need of existing community and sport use and allow for future growth
- Retention of oval space into the future to ensure the Tennis club remain viable.

Finance

The Committee primarily generates funds through the hire fees provided by the user groups, additional fundraising and grants, while outgoings are generally related to insurances, improvements, maintenance and repairs. The reserve received more than \$14,080.00 in funding annually from Moira Shire Council to support maintenance primarily as well as some additional operational support and investment in infrastructure and no concurrent operating or maintenance funding through DEECA.

The Committee relies heavily on community volunteering and in-kind support to remain operational. To support future re-developments, the Committee will need to work with facility users, the broader community and all levels of government to build partnerships.



Hard Courts



Hit Up Wall

Issue & Opportunity Analysis

Issues

Site Location

Over the last 15 years, there have been numerous discussions between the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club and Moira Shire Council that have flagged the potential relocation of infrastructure and activities from the JC Lowe Oval Reserve including Football, Netball and Tennis to the Yarrawonga Showgrounds.

The Yarrawonga Showgrounds Victoria Park Master Plan was first developed in 2009 in consultation with the Yarrawonga Showgrounds/Victoria Park Committee and its member groups. The Yarrawonga Football Netball Club was not represented on the site plan of 2009; but it was acknowledged that the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club could potentially be relocated to the site. No significant consultation was subsequently undertaken and discussions did not progress.

The Master Plan was revised in 2022, and the current Yarrawonga Showgrounds Victoria Park Master Plan does mention a soccer / football pavilion at Victoria Park but does not specifically reference the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club relocating to the site at any point within the ten year horizon of the master plan. This is due to the cost of relocating and providing "like for like" facilities being prohibitive.

Yarrawonga JC Lowe Oval Reserve Planning and Development Overlay

JC Lowe Oval Reserve is zoned as PCRZ (Public Conservation and resource zone). It is subject to the following planning overlays:

- Rural Floodway overlay
- Environmental significance overlay
- Bushfire management overlay

It is also an 'area of cultural heritage sensitivity' under the Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 2018. Major alterations to the site may trigger the requirement for a Cultural Heritage Management Plan as per the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006.

Lack of space to grow

The site is constrained by the presence of the caravan park located to the East, West and South of the oval, and the river to the north. This effects the capacity to provide additional parking at the facility and to develop additional sporting fields or courts.

Ageing football pavilion

The asset condition rating for the building overall is fair. The club, committee and council have spent significant funds in recent years refurbishing and maintaining parts of the facility extending the life of the facility. Functionally both the tennis club building and the football netball club pavilion are meeting the needs of the clubs for the short term.

Lack of initial planning (e.g. road way, car parking)

Fencing off of the caravan park has changed the dynamic of the reserve along with the establishment of a new road way. Parking is limited and some distance from the facilities with only a small amount of parking available at both of the main facilities. During major events there's no capacity at the site for major event parking. The utilisation of Yarrawonga township car parking is required to be incorporated into the planning for major events.

Reserve Entrance

There is no formalised and signed walking track leading from Burley Road through to the football / netball facility at the other end the reserve.

The designated car parks at the reserve are not lit with security lighting and formally signed which becomes a problem with a number of activities held after dark.

Pedestrian Traffic

Pedestrian lighting, signage and established and maintained walking tracks from the car park to the Dempsey Pavilion in particular would enhance the safety of participants and spectators for the oval sports.

Further, a nominated marked pedestrian crossing and walkway for pedestrians whose cars are parked in the currently unused carpark, in conjunction with the exclusion of parking on bushland is required.

Tennis Club Entry Point

The tennis club utilise a number of car parks on site to access their grass courts and main pavilion. The main carpark and entry point to the hard courts is via the new road to the south of the courts. The Tennis Clubhouse carpark is accessed through the Yarrawonga Holiday Park and is frequently used by the club on competition days and during major events by food vendors, delivery of mobile cool rooms and is used for deliveries.

Volunteers

While the contribution of existing volunteers and the willingness of the Yarrawonga community to contribute their time and resources to a number of causes and projects has been identified as a real strength, the age, capacity and availability of volunteers is a key issue. In addition to this, the Committee have highlighted that with so much effort going towards raising funds for or directly undertaking repairs to ageing and failing infrastructure (fixing broken things), there is risk of the loss of motivation to stay involved.

Suitability for events

Whilst the JC Lowe Oval Reserve has successfully hosted a wide array of events, recent events including concerts, have had a considerable impact on the playing surface for a period of time post event, and the ground damage has been costly to rectify. The CAC will need to consider approving only events that don't compromise the impeccable playing surface, or alternatively factor in suitable ground remediation costs into the hire fees charged to event organisers.



All Abilities Access

Accessible parking is required at the Dempsey Pavilion. Compliant pedestrian access paths are also required around the facility.

Water Access

Separate meters are required for the Tennis Club, Football Netball Club and Caravan Park. A review of current water access arrangements between sporting users and caravan park is required, to ensure long-term affordable water supply to the site.

Opportunities

Strong participation across all programmes

The core users of the reserve are the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club, Yarrawonga Junior Football Club and the Yarrawonga Lawn Tennis Club. The clubs offer a wide variety of competitions, events and programs catering for juniors through to seniors. With the population growth of the Yarrawonga and Mulwala areas, all clubs have been able to leverage strong participation in junior programmes which in turn increases the long term sustainability of the clubs.

Events and ability to generate income

The site currently hosts major events such as Show and Shine, major tennis events and at times has hosted charity events. There is scope on site for this to expand into the future to host regionally significant events. It is important that the facility is maintained and developed so as to continue to attract these events. The hosting of events provides revenue to the Committee which goes directly back to improving the facilities and maintenance at the reserve.

Location (next to river)

Whilst the riverside location has drawbacks of flooding risks and development constraints, the location of the JC Lowe Oval Reserve is nonetheless picturesque and inviting for residents and visitors.

Ability to leverage sponsorship

The tennis and football clubs at JC Lowe Oval Reserve enjoy the benefits of being able to leverage large sponsorship arrangements due to the football club being the only club in Moira Shire to compete in the Ovens and Murray League (and consistently being competitive) and the tennis club being a large regional facility hosting many tournaments.

Development of additional oval/field

Yarrawonga Football Netball Club have strongly advocated for the development of the grassed area to the south west of the existing oval. This space is currently under a 21 year lease to the Yarrawonga Caravan Park, with the lease ending in 2037. There is potential to work in partnership with the Caravan Park Committee to repurpose this space, potentially as an additional ground for junior football or an overflow parking area to cater for major events held at the reserve.

Community Space

The Football Netball Club social space is a well utilised facility hosting a number of community bookings including birthdays and training sessions. The community space is one of the largest social spaces at any Moira Recreation Reserve, boasting views across the reserve. There are some layout issues, including the placement of the bar facilities. If the pavilion was to be replaced, providing a "like for like" space of this size would be costly.

Change Rooms

Female change facilities at the football netball venue were completed in recent years and provide high quality facilities for users. The football facilities have been continually refurbished over a number of years including the removal of walls. The end product although aged, is currently meeting the needs of the existing clubs.



Yarrawonga Football Netball Club



Under The Southern Stars



Country Week Tennis

Caravan Park

The Yarrawonga Holiday Park (Caravan Park) surrounds the JC Lowe Oval Reserve. Historically on game day, football cars would park through the caravan park, however the site is now fenced in and cars cannot access parking. The caravan park has shown exponential growth in visitation over a number of years and developed the premises to cater for this growth.

Yarrawonga Mulwala Amateur Canoe Club

The Yarrawonga Canoe Club currently occupy a 7.5m x 12m shed that sits within the Yarrawonga Holiday Park leased area of the reserve. This shed is used primarily to store canoes and equipment. The Yarrawonga Holiday Park Committee has confirmed that there is no desire or need to move the Canoe Club at this point in time. However, if required at any point in the future, there is capacity to accommodate a canoe storage facility into the existing facilities within the JC Lowe Oval Recreation Reserve.

Tennis Area

JC Lowe Oval Reserve boasts grass tennis courts of the highest quality. There is opportunity in liaison with the Yarrawonga Football Netball Club to continue to host both regionally and state level events at the facility with up to 50 courts available when the oval and existing tennis courts are in use.

Scoreboard Building

The scoreboard building services both Football and Tennis. This building is currently used as a meeting space, a competition office for tennis and a scoreboard and timekeeper facility during the football season.

Spectator Seating

Current spectator seating for the football site is sufficient. However, there is limited spectator seating for netball.

Roadways and Car Parking

The entrance road to the reserve was initially constructed as a driveway rather than a formal roadway. However, over time, it has increasingly been used as a formal roadway and Council acknowledge that it should be reflected as such. Naming of the entrance road will help identify the location and reduce the risk of emergency vehicles being confused by an unnamed road.

Asset: Oval grandstand



Condition: Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Dempsey Pavilion



Condition: Fair

 $\textbf{Recommendation:} \ Consider \ replacement \ in \ new$

location as a long term project

Asset: JC Lowe Oval



Condition: Good.

Recommendation: Oval requires drainage plan. Future works to be considered with the irrigation pump and system replacement into the future

Asset: Oval kiosk



Condition: Fair

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Oval scoreboard & timekeepers box



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Oval interchange boxes



Condition: Fair

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Oval timekeepers box



Condition: Poor

Recommendation: Continue to maintain as required

Asset: Oval coaches boxes



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Playground



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: Continue to maintain Install shade sails in the future upgrade

Asset: Playground fencing



Condition: Very good. Renewed in 2020 **Recommendation:** No action required

Asset: Netball change rooms



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Netball shelters



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Netball courts



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Netball court lighting



Condition: Good

Recommendation: Upgrade to LED in the future

Asset: Oval lighting



Condition: Good

Recommendation: Upgrade to LED in the future

Asset: Oval behind goal netting



Condition: Poor

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Oval irrigation



Condition: Poor condition. Recent assessment recommended that the irrigation system be renewed

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Oval fencing



Condition: Poor Condition

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Public toilets behind the Pascoe Ellis Stand



Condition: Good Condition

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Tennis hit up wall



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: J.R. Rennie Tennis Club Pavilion



Condition: Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Tennis greenkeeper's storage shed



Condition: Good Condition

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Tennis court fencing



Condition: Poor

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Tennis court perimeter fencing



Condition: Fair

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Grass tennis courts



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: Continue to maintain and improve

as part of a regular program

Asset: Hard tennis courts



Condition: Poor

Recommendation: Future replacement

Asset: Car park - south tennis courts



Condition: Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Car park - west of Yarrawonga Outdoor Swimming Pool



Condition: Fair

Recommendation: Formalisation of car parking

required into the future

Asset: Tennis club raw water pump and irrigation



Condition: Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Tennis club shed



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Ticket Box: Was removed. A permanent ticket box located at the front entrance to the reserve would provide shelter for volunteers as part of the future capital works planned.

Asset: Entrance road



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No maintenance required Redevelopment to consider pedestrian traffic and

lighting into the future

Asset: Entrance car parking



Condition: Very Good

Recommendation: No action required

Asset: Tennis court lighting



Condition: Fair condition

Recommendation: Upgrade to LED

Asset: Swimming pool car park



Condition: Poor

Recommendation: Resurface and formalise car

parking spaces to maximise space

Asset: Tennis clubhouse carpark



Condition: Good

Recommendation: Material required to fill in potholes

Ongoing maintenance program

Development Priorities

No.	Project	Priority High Medium Low	Timeframe Short Medium Long	Project Type
1	Improve drainage and seal the area between the clubrooms and netball court impacted by flood events	High	Short	Upgrade
2	Provide adequate lighting to entrance road to JC Lowe Oval Reserve	High	Short	New
3	Formalise pedestrian access route and disabled car parks for patrons at the football, netball and tennis facilities	High	Short	Upgrade
4	Install Moira branded reserve entrance signage	High	Short	New
5	Install bollards between oval, road and tennis court hit up area	High	Short	New
6	Fence off the natural area between points 12 and 17 for reserve user safety	High	Short	New
7	Install a greenskeeper storage bay for tennis and football	High	Short	New
8	Replace ground surface irrigation (tennis)	High	Short	Upgrade
9	Replace ground surface irrigation (football)	High	Short	Upgrade
10	Replace external and internal tennis club fencing	High	Medium	Renewal
11	Construct new football changeroom facilities	High	Long	New
12	Construct new football netball community facilities	High	Long	New
13	Investigate the current lease arrangements to determine the potential for development of the areas to the west and south of the current caravan storage area to serve as alternative caravan parking, or cabin space. If viable, the existing caravan park storage space could provide an opportunity for a multi-use green space	Medium	Short	New

Development Priorities

No.	Project	Priority High Medium Low	Timeframe Short Medium Long	Project Type
14	Replace fence around the oval with picket fencing	Medium	Medium	New
15	Install a pedestrian crossing point at Burley Road to access the JC Lowe Oval Reserve from town	Medium	Medium	Upgrade
16	Upgrade hard court tennis court lighting to LED	Medium	Medium	Upgrade
17	Provide LED lighting to at least 4 grass tennis courts	Medium	Medium	New
18	Install removable bollards between netball courts and football to enhance match day safety	Low	Medium	New
19	Replace current lighting on football oval with LED globes and fittings	Low	Medium	Renewal
20	Install tiered spectator seating at the netball courts	Low	Long	New
21	Replace netball court lighting with LED globes and fittings	Low	Long	Renewal
22	Provide dual spectator viewing structure between football and tennis	Low	Long	Renewal
23	Formalise and seal car park area behind the swimming pool plant room	Low	Long	Upgrade
24	Replace 4 x concrete tennis courts	Low	Long	Renewal

2024 JC Lowe Oval Reserve Master Plan



Improvement Project

- Improve drainage and seal the area between the clubrooms and netball courts impacted by flood events
- 2 Provide adequate lighting to entrance and road to JC Lowe Oval Reserve
- Formalise pedestrian access route linking Burley Road to sporting facilities
- 4 Install Moira branded reserve entrance signage
- 5 Install bollards between oval, road and tennis court hit up area
- 6 Fence off the natural area between points 13 and 19 for reserve user safety
- 7 Install a greenskeeper storage bay for tennis and football
- 8 Replace ground surface irrigation (tennis)
- Replace ground surface irrigation (football)
- 10 Replace external and internal tennis club fencing
- Construct new football changeroom facilities
- Construct new football / netball / tennis community facilities
- Investigate current lease arrangements to determine the potential for development of the areas to the west and south of the current caravan storage area to serve as alternate caravan parking or cabin space. If viable the existing caravan park storage space could provide an opportunity for a multi-use green space
- 14 Replace fence around the oval with picket fencing
- Install a pedestrian crossing point at Burley Road to access JC Lowe Oval Reserve from town
- 16 Upgrade hard court tennis court lighting to LED
- Provide LED lighting to at least 4 grass tennis courts
- 18 Install removable bollards between netball courts and football to enhance match day safety
- Replace current lighting on football oval with LED globes and fittings
- 20 Install tiered spectator seating at the netball courts
- Replace netball court lighting with LED globes and fittings
- Provide dual spectator viewing structure between football and tennis
- Foramlise and seal carpark area behind the swimming pool plant room
- 24 Replace 4 x concrete tennis courts





Phone (03) 5871 9222 RS 133 677 Fax (03) 5872 1567 Email info@moira.vic.gov.au Mail PO Box 578, Cobram VIC 3643

Main Administration Centre
44 Station Street Cobram

Service Centre 100 Belmore Street, Yarrawonga

moira.vic.gov.au